# MINUTES UMATILLA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

## Meeting of Thursday, May 25, 2017 6:30 p.m., Umatilla County Justice Center, Media Room Pendleton, Oregon

**COMMISSIONERS** 

**PRESENT:** Randy Randall, Chair, Gary Rhinhart, Vice Chair, Suni Danforth, Don Wysocki,

Clive Kaiser, Tami Green, Tammie Williams, Cecil Thorne

**ABSENT:** Don Marlatt

STAFF: Tamra Mabbott, Bob Waldher, Brandon Seitz, Tierney Dutcher

NOTE: THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE MEETING. A RECORDING OF THE MEETING IS AVAILABLE AT THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT OFFICE.

#### CALL TO ORDER

Chair Randall called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. and read the opening statement.

#### **MINUTES**

Chair Randall asked the Planning Commission to review the minutes from April 27, 2017. Commissioner Williams moved to adopt the minutes as written. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Green. Motion carried by consensus.

#### **NEW HEARING**

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT, #T-17-074, COLUMBIA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, APPLICANT, WESTLAND IRRIGATION DISTRICT, OWNER. The applicant requests an amendment of the Comprehensive Plan Text and approval of an exception to Statewide Planning Goal 11 (Public Facilities and Services). The exception would allow for a sewer line extension from the City of Hermiston to the Umatilla Army Depot (Depot). The proposed sewer line would run west from the City of Hermiston within the public right of way of Bridge Road, then west across private lands owned by Westland Irrigation District, before reaching the Depot. The criteria of approval are found in Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) Chapter 660, Divisions 4 and 11 and the Umatilla County Development Code (UCDC) Sections 152.750 through 152.755.

#### STAFF REPORT

Brandon Seitz, Administrative Planner, stated that the applicant is proposing to amend the Umatilla County Comprehensive Plan to justify a Goal exception to Statewide Planning Goal #11, Public Facilities & Service. An exception is necessary because Goal 11 does not allow for a city to extend its service, in this case the sewer line, outside the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). The applicant is proposing 2 reasons to justify this exception. The first is under OAR 660-011-0060, which states that lands by operation of Federal Law are not subject to the Statewide Planning Goals. The second reason is based on a (Land Use Board of Appeals) LUBA decision, Debby Todd vs. City of Florence. LUBA

made a decision that stated it is an acceptable reason for a city to extend its services outside the UGB to serve another nearby area that has also previously been approved for a Goal exception. The Depot currently spans 2 counties, Umatilla and Morrow. Both counties have already adopted Goal exceptions to Statewide Planning Goal 3, Agricultural, Goal 11, Public Facilities and Services and Goal 14, Urbanization. The Depot is allowed to develop urban level sewers at the site at this time. Essentially, the decision tonight would allow for the City of Hermiston to extend the services to serve those areas that have already been approved for a Goal exception.

An important note on this application is that, on the portion of the line outside of the City of Hermiston's UGB new connections will be restricted to only lands on the Depot that have gone through the Goal exception process and land remaining under federal ownership. A portion of the Depot will remain under federal ownership, so only the lands retained by the military will be allowed to connect.

## APPLICANT TESTIMONY

Jolene Horning, Administrative Assistant, Columbia Development Authority (CDA), PO Box 200, Boardman, Oregon.

Mark Morgan, Assistant City Manager, City of Hermiston, 180 NE 2<sup>nd</sup> Street, Hermiston, Oregon

Ms. Horning stated that the CDA is comprised of 5 board members that include a representative from Port of Umatilla, Port of Morrow, Morrow County Commissioner, Umatilla County Commissioner and the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR). She stated that Greg Smith, CDA Executive Director, asked her to communicate to the Planning Commission that he is excited that the transportation package is in the process of being approved by the legislature. They will add to their expansions and hope to have the land transfer completed by December 2017.

Commissioner Rhinhart stated that the Planning Commission approved the exception for Umatilla at the last hearing in April. At that time they stated that they had the capacity to handle the project and expansion. He asked about why this Goal exception is necessary as well. Mr. Morgan explained that there are many beneficial opportunities to having a dual system in that area. He referenced the map and indicated that the route going down Bridge Road is their preferred route. That route follows along the same route the City of Umatilla proposed. The sewer line would gravity feed from the I-82/I-84 interchange to the north, toward the Columbia River. They will connect at the same location so it gives CDA alternatives to look at. Before the City of Hermiston spent money on engineering studies they wanted to be sure they have the ability to do this in the first place. Additionally, he sees potential for a long term plan for a redundant system. The City of Hermiston's Recycled Water Facility has gone through a \$25 million expansion in the past several years, so they have a substantial amount of capacity within the City's system. They have not yet created a rate structure, as it will be built off of how much capacity they use in the system. Commissioner Rhinhart stated that the estimate is approximately \$5 million dollars. Mr. Morgan stated that it is a high-level estimate, as they have not yet gone into detail.

Mr. Morgan stated that they prefer the option along Bridge Road because it provides the CDA the ability to gravity flow most of the way to Bridge Road all the way down to the Umatilla River. The only lift station required would be just inside the City's UGB. After crossing the river it would go into a forced main with a lift station. Once inside the UGB, the preferred alternative is to follow Bridge Road or

Highland Avenue up to the Christian School, and then head north from there. Another alternative, if they wanted to stay entirely inside of public right-of-way, would be to send it up 29<sup>th</sup> and follow up to Orchard. At that point, there is a very large mainline that comes in and it will connect into the existing system. It is the former location of the City's treatment plant so they have large capacity piping in existence there pump it all the City's current treatment to to plant.

Chair Randall asked more about the treatment system and the ability to return the water for use in farming practices. Mr. Morgan stated that the City of Hermiston's system is the only one in the state that has the capability to return the water directly to an irrigation district. Chair Randall asked if the CDA is going to choose either Hermiston or Umatilla. Ms. Horning stated that the CDA is still in the process of making that decision but wanted to be sure the exception is complete before the federal transfer.

#### PROPONENT TESTIMONY

Becky Hewitt, Senior Planner, Angelo Planning Group, 921 SW Washington, Suite 468, Portland, Oregon. Ms. Hewitt stated that the exception does not expire once it is approved. The CDA will be able to make a choice to determine what makes the most sense for them. If more intense industrial uses come into play or the need for redundancy or other reasons why they may want another line, it will be available in the future.

Commissioner Danforth asked of both routing options presented will require a lift station. Mr. Morgan stated that all routing options will require a lift station. Commissioner Green asked if the citizens will foot the bill for the development project. Mr. Morgan stated no, they will use enterprise funds sustained entirely by user fees and user rates. The local tax payers will not be paying for the sewer line. Commissioner Wysocki asked about the need for redundancy and what the plan would be for that. Mr. Morgan stated that it would be redundant from 2 separate entities. Under the preferred alternative the line would come in where Bridge Road meets the CDA property. If the City of Hermiston and the City of Umatilla serve the property, once it got into the City of Umatilla's system it would be under the City of Umatilla's rate structure. Ultimately, it would be up to the CDA. If it makes sense for them to have a redundant system the cost would be on them and it would not affect the rate payers.

#### **PUBLIC AGENCY**

A letter from Morrow County was submitted into the record.

## **PUBLIC AGENCY**

Mike Wick, Westland Irrigation District, PO Box 944, Hermiston, Oregon. Mr. Wick stated that Westland Irrigation District (WID) is generally supportive to neutral on the project as it is purposed. He is concerned about the canal that parallels I-82 because he did not see anything in the documents about boring under the canal. There is a high-level cost for the freeway bore but there will also be a need to bore under the canal. If the Planning Commission were to approve this request, he asks them to consider including language that will include collaboration and approval from WID about the design and method of how they plan to bore under the canal. Chair Randall stated that, this hearing is to determine the land

use part. Later, they will come forth with engineering plans and at that time they will be required to collaborate and provide those details.

Mrs. Mabbott stated that Mr. Wick's concerns are important and we can incorporate those details into the findings so when either city gets to the design phase, we will be sure to address that. Commissioner Thorne asked what WID's preferred route is. Mr. Wick stated that it doesn't matter to them. The route that is on Bridge Road crosses a small stretch of WID property on the west side of I-82, but causes minimal concern. The biggest concern at this time is whether they plan to do any canal crossing or bore under. Whatever method they choose can be worked out and agreed to.

#### APPLICANT REBUTTAL

Chair Randall asked if the City of Hermiston has a preferred side of Bridge Road to use in routing the line. Mr. Morgan stated that they have not yet seen what other utilities are present on either side at this time. That will be a main factor in dictating which side they choose. He stated that they plan to work with property owners and others to keep good relations.

## **NEUTRAL TESTIMONY**

James Konningrud, 29081 Bridge Road, Hermiston, Oregon. Mr. Konningrud stated that the gas line runs along one side of the road and the phone lines run along the other side of the road. He asked if they normally put sewer lines through the center of the road. Mr. Morgan stated that they would not want to do any asphalt cuts. The decision will depend on the width of the right of way and how much is available there. Tax payers will not be paying for the line. If the CDA wants more detailed engineering they will pay for that.

#### **NEUTRAL TESTIMONY**

Jim Kooch, 29103 Bridge Road, Hermiston, Oregon. Mr. Kooch stated that he would like to know more about how they plan to deal with traffic and what will be built out at the Depot that requires a sewer line. Chair Randall stated that they are not able to answer those questions at this time. This hearing is about a land use, the CDA will have to make those decisions in the design phase. Ms. Horning stated that the CDA is still in the process of developing, as the land has not yet transferred. The purpose of this application is to gear up for the transfer so they are able to bring industrial uses to that piece of land.

Mr. Kooch stated that Bridge Road is already full of traffic at this time. If they open the gate out at the Depot and those people use the road, it will cause a major problem. Washingtonians already come down Powerline Road to Bridge Road and end up on Westland. Chair Randall stated that, regardless of whether the Planning Commission approves the sewer line, development on the Depot property will most likely happen anyway. At this point they working on infrastructure and some proposals may be 20 years out. Commissioner Wysocki stated that any development at the Depot will require traffic studies and analysis. Ms. Horning stated that there is a transportation package in the process of being approved that will make some changes into the interstate allowing drivers to access the Depot easier. They hope these considerations will keep some of the traffic off Bridge Road and the Powerline Road exit. Mrs. Mabbott stated that Umatilla County has already determined that access to the Depot will either be the

Southgate, which is next to the Gun Club on I-84, or it will be the Lamb Road, Walker Road, Westland Road route. There are no plans to have an access across Powerline Road. Umatilla County has adopted an Interchange Area Management Plan for those 2 intersections. The Westland Road interchange off of Lamb Road is currently barricaded off, but in the past it was commonly used as an access point for employees at the incinerator site. The other is the Southgate exit. Ms. Mabbott shared that Greg Smith, Executive Director of the CDA, stated that the legislature is looking to get some funding to improve those intersections. There are several checks and balances involved in the process and the neighbors in the area can rest assured that there is no plan to provide access to the Depot from Bridge Road. In the future if that became a possibility, the neighbors would be notified in advance. She added that interchange improvements are very expensive and at this time there is no funding set aside to improve the existing interchanges, let alone to take on a third one.

Chair Randall closed the hearing for deliberation.

Commissioner Williams made a motion to recommend approval of the CDA exception to Statewide Planning Goal 11, Text Amendment #T-17-074, to the Board of County Commissioners, with additional language to express coordination with Westland Irrigation District on the design phase to address the canal, based on the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Danforth. Motion passed with a vote of 8:0.

#### **OTHER BUSINESS**

Mrs. Mabbott announced that Julie Alford is retiring after 30 years of service with Umatilla County. There will be a retirement party on June 29th at the Umatilla County Courthouse in Room 114 from 12pm - 2 pm and everyone is invited to stop by. Mrs. Alford has been a huge asset to the Planning Department and we will miss her dearly.

Mrs. Mabbott also announced that the Planning Department has done some reorganizing. Effective July 1st, Tierney Dutcher, Administrative Assistant, will get a promotion but will have the same job title. Brandon Seitz will get a promotion and a new title, Senior Planner/ GIS. Bob Waldher will be the new Umatilla County Assistant Planning Director.

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

Chair Randall adjourned the meeting at 7:21 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Tierney Dutcher Administrative Assistant

Minutes adopted by the Planning Commission on July 27, 2017